
Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

SPECIAL Board of Directors Meeting 

 

Thursday, January 11, 2018 – 5:00 p.m. 

 

City of Fillmore City Hall, City Council Chambers 

250 Central Avenue, Fillmore, CA 93015 

 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3. Public Comments 
Members of the public may address the Board on any matter on the agenda or on any non-agenda 

item within the jurisdiction of the Board. No action will be taken by the Board on any non-agenda 

item. All comments are subject to a five-minute time limit.  

 

4. Approval of Agenda 

Motion 

 

5. Director Announcements/Board Communications 

 

6. Interim Executive Director Update 

Information Item  
The Interim Executive Director will provide an informational update on Agency activities since 

the previous Special Board meeting of December 4, 2017. 

 

7. CONSENT CALENDAR 

a. Approval of Minutes 
Motion 

Approval of the minutes from the Regular Board Meeting of October 30, 2017; Special 

Board Meeting of November 7, 2017; and Special Board Meeting of December 4, 2017. 

 

b. Revised Resolution 2017-02 Adopting a Revised Conflict of Interest 

Code 
Motion 

Board to consider adopting the revised version of Resolution 2017-02 and 

approving the revised Conflict of Interest Code. 

 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Special Board Meeting 

January 11, 2018 

Page 2 

 

c. General Liability Insurance 

Motion 
Board to consider accepting the General Liability Insurance proposal presented by 

insureCAL Insurance Agency providing Professional Liability and Directors and Officers 

Insurance with $1,000,000  policy aggregate limit; $1,000,000 coverage for Public 

Officials Management; $50,000 coverage for Defense Only non-monetary coverage; 

$100,000 Defense only non-monetary coverage aggregate and $25,000 Crisis Management 

coverage for a premium of $1,955.24 per year 

 

 

8. ACTION ITEMS 

a. Confirmation of 2018 Regular Board Meeting dates and the 

rescheduling of the FPB GSA’s Community Workshop and Boundary 

Modification Workshop 

Motion 
The Board shall review future dates for FPB GSA Regular Board meetings throughout 

2018 and the rescheduling of the Community Workshop, postponed from December 6 due 

to the Thomas fire, and the postponed Boundary Modification Workshop which had been 

proposed for January 11, 2018. 

 

b. Interview with Legal Firms 

Motion 

The Board shall interview the top three legal firm candidates nominated by the Ad Hoc 

Committee in consideration of one of the firms as the FPB GSA’s legal counsel.  The legal 

firms include McMurtrey Harsock and Worth; Olivarez Madruga Lemieux & O’Neill; and 

Young Wooldridge 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
The Board will adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting on Monday, January 29, 2018 or call 

of the Chair. 

Materials, which are non-exempt public records and are provided to the Board of Directors to be used in consideration of the above agenda items, 

including any documents provided subsequent to the publishing of this agenda, are available for inspection at UWCD’s offices at 106 North 8th 

Street in Santa Paula during normal business hours. 

 

 

The Americans with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded from participation in, or denied the 

benefits of, the District’s services, programs or activities because of any disability. If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, or 

if you require agenda materials in an alternative format, please contact the UWCD Office at (805) 525-4431 or the City of Fillmore at (805) 524-

1500. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make appropriate arrangements.  

 

 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Special Board Meeting 

January 11, 2018 

Page 3 

 

 

 

Approved: __________________________________________________ 

 

Posted: (date) January 2, 2018 (time) 3:00 p.m.  (attest) Kris Sofley 

At: United Water Conservation District Headquarters, 106 No. 8th St., Santa Paula, CA 

 

Posted: (date) January 2, 2018 (time) 3:15 p.m.  (attest) Kris Sofley 

At: Fillmore City Hall, 250 Central Avenue, Fillmore, CA 

 

Posted: (date) January 2, 2018 (time)  3:30 p.m.  (attest) Kris Sofley 

At: https://www.facebook.com/FPBGSA/ 

 

 

 
 

 

 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Special Board of Directors Meeting 

December 4, 2017 – 6:00 p.m. 

 

City of Fillmore City Hall, City Council Chambers 

250 Central Avenue, Fillmore, CA 93015 

 

MINUTES 

Directors in Attendance 

 Director Gordon Kimball 
 Director Kelly Long 
 Director Ed McFadden 
 Director Candice Meneghin 
 Director Glen Pace 
 

Directors Absent 

 Director Carrie Broggie 
 
Staff Present 

 Kris Sofley, interim executive director 
 
Public Present 

 Tim Moore, UWCD  
Tony Morgan, UWCD 

  
1. Call to Order 6:08p.m. 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3. Public Comments 
Chair Long noticed that the only public in attendance were Tony Morgan and Tim Moore of 
UWCD.  She asked if there were any public comments.  None were offered.  
 

4. Interim Executive Director Update 
Ms. Sofley reported that the County of Ventura IT Services team was already at work on 
the FPB GSA website, and she expected to have a beta version of the website for the 
Board to review at its January 2018 meeting.  She also reported that the County of 
Ventura’s Counsel had again rejected the FPB GSA’s Resolution 2017-02 Conflict of 
Interest Code, so she would be revising and resubmitting the resolution and conflict of 
interest code at the next Regular Board meeting utilizing a template offered by the 
County of Ventura.  Ms. Sofley also mentioned that Director McFadden had deposited 
$51,300 into the FPB GSA’s checking account.   



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Special Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

December 4, 2017 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 
Director McFadden thought the check was from the City of Fillmore, but Ms. Sofley 
explained that there had been some confusion at City Hall when the check from the 
County arrived in the mail.  Even though the check was made payable to the Fillmore and 
Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency, the check was erroneously deposited 
into the City’s bank account.  When the error was caught, the City immediately issued a 
check to the FPB GSA in the amount of $51,300, which is the check Director McFadden 
deposited. 
 
Due to that confusion, Chair Long suggested that Ms. Sofley secure a post office box for 
the FPB GSA use for incoming mail.  Ms. Sofley said she would take care of it. 
 
Ms. Sofley also said that at the next regular Board meeting, she would present proposed 
meeting dates for 2018 for the Board’s approval.  The Interim Executive Director 
position still needs to be addressed as Mr. Morgan said he believed Ms. Sofley would not 
be available after January 1, 2018.  Mr. Morgan also took the opportunity to remind the 
Board that the timeline for Boundary Modification had been changed in that submissions 
open in January and close in June.  Ms. Sofley reminded the Board that the Boundary 
Modification Workshop was scheduled for Thursday, January 11 at 9am at the Veteran’s 
Memorial Building in Fillmore. 

 

5. UWCD In Kind Services and Reimbursement Agreement 
Motion 

Mr. Morgan asked that this item be tabled until the December 11, 2017, Regular Board 
meeting as issues regarding the Executive Director position and accounting services still 
needed to be worked out.  Chair Long agreed to table the item until the December 11, 
2017 meeting. 
 

6. January – June 2018 Budget Considerations 

Motion 
The Board, in preparation of the December 6 Community (Budget) Workshop, being held from 
9am to 11am at the Veteran’s Memorial Building in Fillmore, reviewed a cash flow spread sheet 
initially prepared by Director Kimball and modified by Mr. Morgan.  Mr. Morgan said the cash 
flow projection allowed for groundwater extraction fee adjustments every six months, if 
necessary, and was divided into two six month periods per year (Jan-Jun and Jul-Dec). 
 
Chair Long suggested that, for the purpose of the Workshop, the cash flow spreadsheet include 
assumptions to justify the AF pumping fee for stakeholders.  She also asked Mr. Morgan to 
include data as to the average groundwater extraction per basin based on the past 10 years. 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Special Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

December 4, 2017 

Page 3 

 
 

 

 

 
Chair Long also asked Mr. Morgan to show the loan from Ventura County and zero it out when 
it’s paid back in June 2018, just to insure transparency.  Mr. Morgan explained that the 
spreadsheet also includes in-kind expenses under Administration Expenses and pulled some 
expenses out for the GSP Grant balance of $79,000.  Chair Long also asked Mr. Morgan to 
include a best estimate for lawyer costs.  Director Kimball stated that of the $79,000, $24,000 is 
legal fees, which is about $50,000 per year. 
 
Director Pace asked that, since we’re already into December, can the spreadsheet indicate actual 
expenses to date.  Chair Long added that it should also include UWCD staff time, but cautioned 
that it should be an extremely frugal “best estimate” in order to help validate the $10 AF fee in 
2018 and 2019. 
 
Mr. Morgan said that every year, as the budget is approved, pump charges can be adjusted but for 
the purpose of this estimate, pump charges are based on a low average of 50,000 AF. 
 
Chair Long also reminded the Board that the first two years’ Budget reflected building a reserve 
for the monitoring well costs, while Director Meneghin stated that the revenue reflected is only 
from rates and doesn’t include other grants and outside funding sources. 
 
Director McFadden said he thought the cash flow looked pretty good, staring steep but then 
tapering off after the groundwater model and monitoring wells come online. 
 
Chair Long then asked the Board to review the draft agenda for the Community Workshop.  
Director Kimball suggested copies of the Standford article on historical data and how UWCD’s 
historical monitoring data is an advantage is preparing the GSP be distributed at the workshop to 
explain the advantages and benefits of having UWCD as a partner in the development of the GSP. 
 
The draft agenda was reordered as follows: 
1.  Welcome – Chair Kelly Long 
2.  Board of Directors introduce themselves (name, brief bio, why involved, stakeholders 
 representing) 
3.  SGMA Background – Tony Morgan (also include benefits provided by UWCD partnership in 
 address SGMA requirements, historical data, AB3030, etc.) 
4.  Explanation of JPA – Directors McFadden and Kimball 
 Why UWCD, County of Ventura and City of Fillmore 
 What support each JPA member provides to FPB GSA 
 Expectations/Peer Reviews 
 How JPA impacts/affects FPB GSA 
5. GSA Board activities to date – Chair Long 
 Meetings held 
 Accomplishments to date 
 Expectations for the year ahead 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Special Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

December 4, 2017 

Page 4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

6. Proposition 1 Grant application – Tony Morgan 
 Work plan section from grant application and submitted on time! (hard copies available) 
 GSP development led by UWCD 
 Address skepticism, efficiencies in using UWCD history data (mention Stanford article) 
 Budget submitted with grant application (hard copies available) 
 Distribution of Funds available 
 Stress that grant award covers preparation of GSP NOT ongoing administrative costs of  
 agency’s operations. 
7.  Budget and Assessments – All Board Members 
 Powerpoint presentation Opening Slide showing  
  Significant Costs 
  Potential Grant awards (one already submitted, more potentially applied for) 
  Funding Options (JPA partners, outside partnerships/collaborations) 
  Extraction Fees/Assessments 
  Cash Flow Projection (hard copies available CLEARLY MARKED AS DRAFT  
   ONLY NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION) 
  Contact Details slide 
8. Discussion – led by Chair Long with full Board participation 
 Questions? 

  Comments/Concerns 
  Suggestions 

  
7:05p.m. Short five minute recess is called as Board is notified of fire in Santa Paula, Director Kimball 
excused himself from the rest of the meeting.   
 

Director McFadden stressed that the FPB GSA ensures that we govern our basins locally and 
keeps State agencies out of the local aquifer management.  Director Pace agreed that local control 
should be reiterated as much as possible. 
 
Director McFadden also said that the biggest question was going to be “why two monitoring 
wells?” 
 
Chair Long asked all of the Directors to be prepared for the tough questions.  Director Pace said 
Directors should be happy to take suggestions.  Director Meneghin said she didn’t want to give 
false hope, but there are many funding opportunities that haven’t been explored yet and the Board 
should share those possibilities with the stakeholders. 
 
Chair Long also asked Mr. Morgan if he could prepare maps to display in the workshop showing 
an aerial overview of pumping wells across the two basins and other pertinent information.  She 
asked Ms. Sofley to insure there were comment cards and a sign in sheet and suggested badges 
for everyone would be a good idea to break the ice and be able to identify speakers. 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Special Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

December 4, 2017 

Page 5 

 

 
 

The Board agreed that after the workshop, it would incorporate stakeholders concerns, comments 
and suggestions into its discussion of adopting a proposed Operating Budget for January 1 
through June 30, 2018, and would move the motion to approve the proposed Operating Budget 
until a later date after the Workshop. 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 7:45p.m. 
The Board will adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting on Monday, December 11, 2017 or 
call of the Chair. 

I certify that the above are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Special Board of Directors 
Meeting of December 4, 2017. 

 
____________________________________________________ 

Attest:  Kelly Long, Chair, Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency (FPB GSA) 

 
____________________________________________________ 

Attest:  Kris Sofley, Interim Executive Director, FPB GSA 

 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Special Board of Directors Meeting 

November 7, 2017 – 6:00 p.m. 

 

City of Fillmore City Hall, City Council Chambers 

250 Central Avenue, Fillmore, CA 93015 

 

MINUTES 

Directors in Attendance 

 Director Carrie Broggie  
Director Gordon Kimball 

 Director Kelly Long 
 Director Ed McFadden 
 Director Candice Meneghin 
 Director Glen Pace 
 

Staff Present 

 Kris Sofley, interim executive director 
 
Public Present 

 Zoe Carlson, Dudek 
 Meredith Clement, Kennedy Jenks 
 Chris Collier, Western States Petroleum Association 
 Bill and Lynn Edmonds, One Step a la Vez 
 Lisa Emmert 

Rachel Kimball Laenen, Fillmore and Piru Pumpers  
Bill Lindsay, RWC 

 Tom Martinez, Homeowner 
 Tim Moore, UWCD  

Tony Morgan, UWCD 
 Janey Munoz 
 Victoria Van Trees, Kentuck Trust 
 

1. Call to Order 6:02p.m. 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

 

 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Special Board of Directors Meeting 

November 7, 2017 

Page 2 

 

 
 

3. Public Comments 

Chair Long asked if any members of the public wanted to address the Board or provide a 
public comment.  Several speaker cards were submitted to the Interim Executive 
Director. 
 
Janey Munoz addressed the Board, stating that wanted to request that the Board voice its 
opposition to the Seneca Corporation’s request for “aquifer exemption expansion” for its 
operations in the Sespe Oil Field, injection waste water deep into the aquifer in the Sespe 
area.  She asked the Board to submit a letter of opposition to the Federal Environmental 
Protection Agency and DOGER (Division of Oil, Gas and Geothermal Resources). 
 
Chris Collier, representing Western States Petrol Association, addressed the Board 
refuting Ms. Munoz’s comments, stating that technical experts have reviewed the permit 
application and found no reason for concern. 
 
Director McFadden asked for contact details to review the studies Mr. Collier discussed, 
and also requested any additional information that would help the Board make an 
informed decision, keeping in mind that the deadline for comments was the following 
day, November 8. 
 
Director Broggie said there was a 160 page technical report that was reviewed by the City 
of Fillmore, which contributed to the City Council’s unanimous vote (5-0) to draft a letter 
stating its opposition to expanding Seneca’s aquifer exemption the night before. 
 
Tony Morgan said there was a digital copy of a report filed by the Union of Concerned Scientists 
regarding groundwater which he would share with the Board. 
 
Victoria VanTrees addressed the Board, stating her opposition to the Seneca drilling.  She said 
that while DOGER says it’s “kinda safe,” to inject wastewater into the lower aquifer and that 
there is little risk of contamination, there are no guarantees that it won’t happen.  She asked the 
Board to stop this action because we can’t afford to risk public resources. 
 
Chair Long said that the Board would add the Seneca injection permit request to a future agenda 
for more in-depth discussion, but said unfortunately, the Board didn’t have enough knowledge of 
the situation to make an informed decision this evening. 
 

 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Special Board of Directors Meeting 

November 7, 2017 

Page 3 

 
 

 

 

4. Interim Executive Director Update 
Ms. Sofley reported that she was still pursuing quotes for general liability insurance for 
the agency and that the paperwork was successfully submitted and checks were ordered 
for the agency’s Bank of Sierra checking account. 

 
Tony Morgan asked the Board if it could move on to item 6, the report from the Ad Hoc Legal 
Committee has the agency’s grant writer, Meredith Clement of Kennedy/Jenks, had been 
detained in traffic and hadn’t arrived at City Council chambers yet. 
 
Chair Long polled the Board and all agreed to reorder the items being addressed, moving on to 
the Ad Hoc Legal Committee report. 
 

6.  Report from Ad Hoc Legal Committee 

Motion 
Director McFadden reported that he and Director Meneghin reviewed and rated each of the five 
proposals received by the FPB GSA, based on rates, experience, proximity to the FPB GSA and 
other factors.  The top three candidates are the law firms of McMurtrey Hartsock & Worth, 
Olivarez Madruga Lemieux & O’Neill, and Young Wooldridge. 
 
The Board agreed to accept the Ad Hoc committee’s recommendations, which didn’t require a 
motion/vote.  Director Meneghin suggested that the three candidate firms participate in an 
interview process that would allow 20 minutes for each interview and provide a 20 minute 
question and answer period for each candidate as well. 
 
The Board agreed to schedule these interviews at the next Regular Board Meeting, now scheduled 
for December 11, but that the meeting start time should be at 5p.m.  Chair Long tasked Ms. 
Sofley with notifying the three candidates as to the date, time and format for the interviews. 
 
Tony Morgan offered to prepare suggested questions for the Board to use as it wished, based on 
the questions and format recently used by UWCD in interviewing its legal counsel candidates.  
Director McFadden agreed that the questions and format used by UWCD was good and effective. 
 
Director Kimball asked Ms. Sofley if she would circulate the dates, times and locations of the 
Board’s various meetings and workshops in December and January, as discussed at the previous 
meeting.  Ms. Sofley said she would circulate an email to the Board with all of the meeting and 
workshop dates voted on and confirmed at the October 30 Board meeting. 

 
 
 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Special Board of Directors Meeting 

November 7, 2017 

Page 4 

 
 
 

 
 
Meredith Clement of Kennedy/Jenks arrived during the Board discussion of the Ad Hoc 
committee recommendations. 
 

5.  Review and Approve Grant Application for the Proposition 1 Groundwater 

 Sustainability Grant Program  
Motion 

 
Mr. Morgan had shared the draft grant application with Directors in advance of the 
meeting and had received comments from a couple of the Directors.   
 
Director McFadden asked Mr. Morgan to explain the purpose of “nesting” test wells, 
which Mr. Morgan explained as the placement of one well, but with a number of pipes at 
varying depths, to measure shallow water (less than 75’ deep) versus deeper aquifer 
measurement and the impact of the groundwater management plan on those various 
elevations.  Mr. Morgan also said there are “cluster” wells, more than one well in close 
proximity, which requires more drilling and is therefore more expensive than the nesting 
approach. 
 
Director Broggie asked Mr. Morgan if that type of monitoring had been done in the 
Fillmore Basin before.  Mr. Morgan said that type of monitoring had not been used in the 
Fillmore Basin before.  The decision before the board, as far as the grant application 
goes, was whether to include the monitoring wells, and reminded the Board that it had the 
option of looking at the scope of the project and negotiating the dollar amount based on 
the number of monitoring wells used.  Director Broggie said the purpose of the GSP was 
to ensure groundwater sustainability and knowing the impact of pumping is a key piece 
of information, asking if there was any other way other than monitoring wells to garner 
this information.  Mr. Morgan said no, not really. 
 
The discussion moved on to groundwater model development and Director McFadden 
asked why the FPB GSA should fund something already in progress by UWCD. Mr. 
Morgan explained that the UWCD groundwater model exceeds the scope of the GSA in 
forecasting future conditions and pumping impact.  Director Pace asked if all of the 
UWCD rate payers – Santa Paula, Oxnard Plain – were paying a pro-rated share of the 
groundwater model development or was it being funded by the grant application. 

 
 
 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Special Board of Directors Meeting 

November 7, 2017 

Page 5 

 

 
 

 
Mr. Morgan said roughly a quarter to a third of the cost from rate payers, and three 
quarters of the development costs were funded by the  State’s Department of Water 
Resources (DWR). 
 
Chair Long asked if the grant included information regarding the disadvantage 
communities included in the Fillmore and Piru basins which would have an impact on the 
amount of match funding required by the FPB GSA.  Mr. Morgan said that information 
was being included and could reduce the matching funds to as low as 27 percent of the 
grant award. 
 
Director Kimball asked if the FPB GSA funds the groundwater model, would it own all 
or part of the model or does UWCD own it and charge the FPB GSA for its use. 
 
Director Meneghin stated that the since the government is actually funding the 
groundwater model development there is no ownership.  Mr. Morgan agreed stating that 
it was not proprietary if a public agency used public funds to develop the model. 
 
Mr. Morgan recapped that for the grant application, the FPB GSA’s Groundwater 
Sustainability Plan (GSP), included four monitoring wells and a cost share at 27 percent, 
instead of the typical 50 percent, due to disadvantage communities being served by the 
GSA. 
 
Director Meneghin asked if the model was co-funded by UWCD and the participating 
GSAs or was the FPB GSA grant funding a new portion of the model. 
 
Mr. Morgan said there is a new model for the basins, separate from the USGS and the 
UWCD Board made the decision to carry the burden for modeling on the Oxnard Plain 
while the Mound Basin is paying for costs of its modeling through its grant. 
 
Chair Long explained that the reason the Board was asking so many questions about the 
grant application was that the Directors know the public will be asking them the same 
questions and the Board wants to be certain that the money it is requesting in the grant is 
what is really needed, and asked if the GSA needs monitoring wells. 
 
Director Meneghin said that while the rate per acre foot proposed could be cheaper if 
there were no monitoring wells, but that by adding the monitoring wells the GSA would 
have more valuable information as to the impact on aquifers as well as on endangered  
 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Special Board of Directors Meeting 

November 7, 2017 

Page 6 

 

 
 

 
species and that the economic depressed areas will offset the matching funds and all of 
that combines to make the grant request more competitive. 
 
Director Kimball said the grant didn’t say any of that.  Director Pace asked if two 
monitoring wells would be enough for two large basins.  Mr. Morgan responded that the 
wells were designed only for basin boundaries between Fillmore and Piru and between 
Fillmore and Santa Paula. 

 
Director Meneghin mentioned a UCSB study, and reminded the board that there is also 
funding available from other sources and that the costs shouldn’t all be placed on the 
pumpers.  She suggested that at a later stage the FPB GSA could bring in partners and 
other funding mechanisms to help with the costs. 
 
Chair Long said the grant didn’t state information regarding the importance of monitoring 
regarding endangered species or groundwater interdependence.  She recapped that the 
Board had discussed the work plan, the budget and timeline and asked the Directors if 
there were any other items that needed to be discussed to ensure that the grant application 
contained everything required to meet the FPB GSA needs. 
 
Director Kimball asked the Board to consider stakeholder confidence, and that funding 
for an outside consultant to review United’s work could assure stakeholders that 
everything was fair, open and equitable. 
 
Mr. Morgan responded that technical and peer review panels were not unusual. He also 
reminded the Board that the application had to be submitted by November 13 and that 
there is some ability to negotiate regarding rank, and award and the percentage of 
matching funds. 
 
Ms. Clement said that there is some flexibility and peer review is good, all of the Board’s 
suggestions are within the scope of work.  She stated that she intentionally keeps the 
application general so as not to commit to tasks that may want to be changed once work 
begins.  Mr. Morgan also said that if you don’t need a portion of the grant award, the 
GSA can give it back. 
 
Director Kimball said that 75 percent of the funding to do the model, not required 
pumpers to pay for that was good and seeking new funding sources is also the right thing 
to do.  He also thought it was good for the FPB GSA to negotiate  for services provided. 
 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Special Board of Directors Meeting 

November 7, 2017 

Page 7 

 
 

 
 Chair Long added that the FPB GSA wants everyone to feel comfortable with easements, support 
 and budget for obtaining a GSP. 
 

Mr. Morgan reminded the Board that the grant shouldn’t reach too far and be obligated to deliver 
and complete tasks that are beyond the scope of the GSP. 
 
Director Meneghin asked if Ms. Clement had included information on the ecological impact and 
if the plan will know when triggers for negative impact are reached or whether the plan will 
identify triggers impacting Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems (GDE).  
 
Mr. Morgan said The Nature Conservatory guidelines are a good framework for evaluating steps 
to go through in evaluating GDE.  
 
Director Meneghin said while the FPB GSA is developing its sustainability plan, is there money 
to include biological assessment of natural springs and water habitats and wondered if all of the 
areas’ springs were included.  Mr. Morgan said no, to which Director Meneghin replied that the 
grant doesn’t have the information needed as it should include monitoring spring vegetation, 
wetlands, it’s all part of what is needed to assess groundwater impact and has to be funded. 
 
Mr. Morgan said that the GSP guidelines don’t go into that level of detail.  Whatever plan the 
agency puts forward, it’s the Boards decision based on if it is significant or unreasonable and then 
what can be done about it. 
 
Director Pace said that the FPB GSA doesn’t have the staff or the budget available for that level 
of technical expertise and asked if UWCD staff could answer those questions and guide the FPB 
GSA.  Mr. Morgan said yes.  Director Pace said groundwater guys versus biologist.  Chair Long 
said the grant application should look at the area as a whole.  Director Pace asked if the grant was 
all encompassing or more simplified, what would the impact be. 
 
Mr. Morgan said he wanted to distinguish between significant and unreasonable impact as long as 
it gets to sustainable guided by technical impact.  Chair Long asked if a little money were added 
to cover that option and Director McFadden added if the grant could be tweaked. 
 
Director Meneghin said there are seven steps identified, identifying springs, the effect, 
assessment, no groundwater development on estuary assessment.  Implement money to do this 
properly.  Director McFadden said it depends on how much grand funding the FPB GSA gets.  
Chair Long asked how many hours it would take to map the areas of concern. 

 
 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Special Board of Directors Meeting 

November 7, 2017 

Page 8 

 
 

 
Mr. Morgan said The Nature Conservancy could be prevailed upon and ask them to help with 
baseline work using its technical experts.  
 
Director Meneghin reiterated the need for assessment for monitoring pockets of steelhead habitat, 
NOAA and Fish and Wildlife sustainability goal. 
 
Director Broggie said there is a line item strictly for what Director Meneghin is talking about, so 
enter X amount of money for 20 hours to identify GDEs and adjust later after the FPB GSA 
knows the award amount. 
 
Ms. Clements again stated that the grant application was developed so that the FPB GSA could 
shift money around to cover tasks.  DWR mechanism providing for maps but it is very broad in 
purpose.  She cautioned the Board that this could become a miserable process if it is too detailed.  
Some flexibility is designed into the application and that she has tried to do that within the 
structured work plan. 
 
Chair Long said that language is woven into the plan but don’t add a dollar amount specifically.  
Use the budget as is as fluctuation is built in.  Director Meneghin said that some of this is not 
included in the scope of work.  Ms. Clements said that every dollar goes to cost share so it needs 
to be reasonable. 
 
Director Kimball asked if it could include a survey identifying GDE in the description.  Director 
Pace asked if that would be $10,000 to $20,000 or $100,000 – just a gut feel.  Director Meneghin 
said for the information it could be $80,000 to $100,000 for an initial assessment of actual late 
sustainable flows, triggers and thresholds.  Director McFadden asked that the budget not be 
changed.  Chair Long reminded that pumpers, ecosystems, UWCD and the City were all 
involved. 
 
Mr. Morgan than said it is his last request for outstanding letters of support for inclusion in the 
grant application. 
 
Director Meneghin said she wants to see that comments have been incorporated into grant 
proposal.  Chair Long asked Ms. Clements if there was any way to summarize Director 
Meneghin’s comments and send that version of the grant application out to all of the Board so 
each Director would have the latest version of the grant application.  She then asked Director 
Meneghin if she wanted to see the revised grant proposal before submitting the environmental 
groups’ letter of support. 

 
 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Special Board of Directors Meeting 

November 7, 2017 

Page 9 

 
 

 
Director Pace asked about the inter-basin agreements and Mr. Morgan said that would be covered 
later during a basin boundary modification workshop.  Director Kimball asked about the 
development of the FPB GSA bylaws and GSP bylaws.  Mr. Morgan said the development of 
bylaws are reimbursable from DWR. 
 
Chair Long reiterated that the proposal was going with two monitoring wells, not four, and then 
asked the Board if they had any additional questions or comments. 
 
Ms. Clements said she would follow-up with Mr. Morgan regarding the schedule for monitoring 
wells in place to do management actions.  She also said that the grant application needs data and 
to have some flexibility in schedule. 
 
Mr. Morgan reviewed things on the schedule to modify. 
 
Chair Long commended Ms. Clements for the work already done.  Director Kimball also thanked 
Ms. Clements for her efforts in turning the proposal around in such a short time and that he and 
the rest of the Board really appreciate her efforts. 
 
Chair Long said it was a good first pass, combining all the different angles and that her passion 
for this is evident and she also thanked Ms. Clements again. 
 
Director Kimball than said that the he wanted to insure the grant reflected the Board’s best efforts 
so that Director Meneghin could get her letter of support and wondered if the GED survey and 
ecosystem monitoring could be woven into the narrative of the grant proposal and the Board 
could work on the budget appropriations accordingly. 
 
Director Meneghin asked how it would meet the identifying requirements.  Chair Long asked for 
help in figuring out how much it would costs to do that.   
 
 

7.  ADJOURNMENT 7:39p.m. 
The Board adjourned to the next Regular Board Meeting on Monday, December 11, 2017 or 
call of the Chair. 

  



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Special Board of Directors Meeting 

November 7, 2017 

Page 10 

 

 

 

I certify that the above are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Special Board of Directors 
Meeting of November 7, 2017. 

 
____________________________________________________ 

Attest:  Kelly Long, Chair, Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency (FPB GSA) 

 
____________________________________________________ 

Attest:  Kris Sofley, Interim Executive Director, FPB GSA 

 





Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Meeting 

 

October 30, 2017 – 6:00 p.m. 

 

City of Fillmore City Hall, City Council Chambers 

250 Central Avenue, Fillmore, CA 93015 

 

MINUTES 

Directors in Attendance 

 Director Carrie Broggie  
Director Gordon Kimball 

 Director Kelly Long 
 Director Ed McFadden 
 Director Candice Meneghin 
 Director Glen Pace 
 

Staff Present 

 Kris Sofley, interim executive director 
 
Public Present 

 Rebecca August, Los Padres Forest Watch 
Chris Collier, WSPA 

 Logan Hardison, La Pedrera LLC 
 Martin Hernandez, Supervisor Kelly Long’s office 
 Doug Legan, Legan Ranch Co. 
 Bill Lindsay, RWC 

Tim Moore, UWCD 
Tony Morgan, UWCD 

 Rachel Kimball Laenen, Fillmore and Piru Pumpers 
 

1. Call to Order 6:00p.m. 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3. Public Comments 
Chair Long asked if any members of the public wanted to address the Board or share public 
comment, none were offered. 
 
 
 
 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

October 30, 2017 

Page 2 

 

 

 
      4.  Approval of Agenda 

Motion 

 Motion to approve the October 30, 2017 agenda as submitted, Director Broggie; Second, 
 Director McFadden. Voice Vote: six ayes (Broggie, Kimball, Long, McFadden, 
 Meneghin, Pace); none opposed.  Motion carries six/zero. 
 

5. Director Announcements/Board Communications 

Each of the Directors shared their activities and attendance at various meetings and 
gatherings which may have an impact on or be of interest to the FPB GSA. 
 

6. Interim Executive Director Update 

Information Item  
The Interim Executive Director reported that, as directed by the Board, she was still pursuing 
insurance coverage quotes.  She also reported that a checking account with Bank of the Sierra had 
been established for the FPB GSA, with Director McFadden serving as the primary signature on 
the account and Director Long as the second signature.  She also received unsolicited information 
on EQuIS Environmental Data Management Software, used for preparation of groundwater 
sustainability plans (GSPs), through Director Long.  Mr. Morgan commented that he was familiar 
with the software. 
 

7.  INFORMATION ITEMS 

A. Update on RFP for Legal Services 

Information Item 
Interim Executive Director provided a progress report on Agency’s Request for Proposal for 
Legal Services, adding that of the 18 requests for proposals that were distributed, five firms 
had responded by the deadline.  Director Broggie asked if the Ventura County Bar 
Association had been contacted regarding the RFP, Ms. Sofley said that she had not contacted 
that organization, but culled lists from the Association of California Water Agencies Legal 
Committee members and the Department of Water Resources list of legal firms as well as 
from previous research conducted for legal representation by the United Water Conservation 
District.  She reported that she eliminated any obvious conflicts of interest (legal firms 
representing UWCD, Ventura County, Santa Paula, etc., as well as those too far from 
Fillmore.  Ms. Sofley also provided hard copies of each of the five proposals to the Directors.   

 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

October 30, 2017 

Page 3 

 
 

 

It was agreed by the Board that Director McFadden and Director Meneghin would form an ad 
hoc committee to review the proposals and bring their recommendations back to the board for 
discussion. Director McFadden advised the Board that he would not be available for the 
November 16 Board meeting. Several Directors had scheduling conflicts for the November 
meeting, and agreed to discuss meeting dates during Agenda item 9F. 
 
 

B. Brown Act, Rosenberg’s Rules of Order and Other Important Information 

Information Item 
Director Long introduced Clerk of the Board for Ventura County Board of Supervisors Brian 
Palmer, who presented an overview of the Brown Act by reviewing points published in 
Rosenberg’s Rules of Order (copies of which were distributed to the Board) and other 
important information and guidelines for public meetings.  He also stated that these resources 
could be helpful in developing the FPB GSA’s Bylaws and also highly recommended that 
legal counsel be present at all of the Board’s future meetings to ensure against any potential 
concerns regarding Brown Act compliance. 

 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Approval of Minutes 

Motion 
Motion to approve the minutes from the Board Meeting of September 18, 2017, Director 
McFadden; Second, Director Long.  Director Broggie abstained from voting as she was not in 
attendance at the September 18, 2017, Board of Directors Meeting.  Roll call vote: five ayes 
(Kimball, Long, McFadden, Meneghin, Pace), none opposed.  Motion approved five/zero. 

 

9. ACTION ITEMS 

A. Ventura County Cash Advance Agreement 

Motion 

Director Long reported that she was successful in securing a cash advance from the County of 
Ventura in the amount of $51,300 to be used for basic operation start-up costs until the FPB 
GSA began generating revenue.  The agreement with the County of Ventura calls for the FPB 
GSA to repay the advance in full and including interest at the prevailing Local Agency 
Investment Funds (LAIF) rate by June 30, 2018.  Director Kimball added that this cash 
advance was like a line of credit which the FPB GSA could draw against as needed, which he 
believed would help reduce interest amounts on the funding. 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

October 30, 2017 

Page 4 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Motion to approve and sign a Cash Advance Agreement with the County of Ventura on 
behalf of the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency, Director Broggie; 
Second, Director Meneghin.  Voice vote: six ayes (Broggie, Kimball, Long, McFadden, 
Meneghin, Pace); none opposed.  Motion passes six/zero. 

 

B. Website design and hosting County of Ventura Information Technology   

Services Department 

Motion 

Director Long had reached out to the County of Ventura Information Technology Services 
Department for website design, construction and hosting services creating the Fillmore and 
Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency website, and received an estimate for 
building and hosting the website, staff training for posting to the website was also included in 
the estimate of $1,800 for website construction and training; plus an addition $183.60 annual 
hosting fee payable to wphostingspot.com (recommended by the ITS Department).  Director 
Broggie said she was very familiar with the VC IT Services department’s work and said they 
were both very fast and very helpful. 
 
Motion to approve the quote of $1,983.60 and hire County of Ventura IT Services 
Department to build a website and to hire wphostingspot.com to host the site for a year on 
behalf of the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency as presented, 
Director Meneghin; Second, Director Kimball.  Voice vote: six ayes (Broggie, Kimball, 
Long, McFadden, Meneghin, Pace); none opposed.  Motion carries six/zero. 
 

 
C. Revised Resolution 2017-02 Conflict of Interest Code 

Motion 
The submission of Resolution 2017-02 adopting a Conflict of Interest Code was rejected by 
the County of Ventura Counsel.  Interim Executive Director made changes to the Resolution 
and to the Conflict of Interest Code in response to Counsel’s comments.  That revised 
Resolution 2017-02 and amended Conflict of Interest Code is now being presented for Board 
approval and adoption. 
 
Motion to approve and adopt the revised Resolution 2017-02 and amended Conflict of 
Interest Code on behalf of the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
as presented, Director Kimball; Second, Director Broggie.  Voice vote: six ayes (Broggie, 
Kimball, Long, McFadden, Meneghin, Pace); none opposed.  Motion carries six/zero. 

 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

October 30, 2017 

Page 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

D. Resolution 2017-03 Proposition 1 Groundwater Sustainability Grant 

Program  
Motion 

The Board discussed various elements within the Proposition 1 Groundwater 
Sustainability Grant submission, including the need for letters of support from the 
City of Fillmore, Waring Water, Piru Basin Pumpers Association, Fillmore Basin 
Pumpers Association and a letter of support from the Environmental groups that 
comprise the coalition represented by Director Meneghin.  Director Long also said 
she was seeking a letter of collaboration with the Santa Clarita Valley GSA for 
inclusion with the FPB GSA grant submission.  There was also discussion about 
amending the scope of work outlined in the grant submission.  Martin Hernandez 
suggesting approving the Resolution to apply for the grant now, and then the Board 
can review and accept the terms of the grant later when it has been awarded.  Director 
Long added that the Board could review the grant application and forward comments 
to Ms. Sofley, who could collect comments and share them with the grant writer.  Mr. 
Morgan reminded the Board that the discussion would need to occur prior to 
November 7 as the DWR turnaround was tight, as the goal for submitting the 
application was November 13. 
 
Motion to approve and adopt Resolution 2017-03 authorizing the submission of the 
California Department of Water Resources Proposition 1 Groundwater Sustainability 
Plan Grant application on behalf of the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency as presented, Director McFadden; Second, Director Pace.  
Voice vote: six ayes (Broggie, Kimball, Long, McFadden, Meneghin, Pace); none 
opposed.  Motion carried and Resolution 2017-03 adopted six/zero. 
 

E. Cost Reimbursement Agreement with United Water Conservation District 
Motion 

      The Board discussed various in-kind services that could or would be provided to the FPB  
 GSA by the United Water Conservation District, including hiring of staff through UWCD 
 (sub-contracting and/or part time employees) for such positions as executive director for the 
 agency, bookkeeping, and billing/receivables in addition to the cost of the Prop 1 Grant 
 preparation. Director McFadden stated that he thought working with UWCD would provide 



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

October 30, 2017 

Page 6 

 
 cost efficiencies and suggested that if UWCD was providing in-kind services and the County 
 of Ventura provided a cash advance, the City of Fillmore could provide an executive director. 
 
 
 

 
 Director Broggie said she didn’t have a complete understanding of the scope of work and 

 what exactly was being provided by each entity.  Mr. Morgan said UWCD could provide 
 accounting services but he would like to readdress this with the UWCD GM and Board of 
 Directors and bring this back to the FPB GSA Board at a later date.  The Directors agreed to 
 readdress this motion and agreement with UWCD at a later meeting. 

 
 Future Workshop and Meeting Dates  

Motion 

The Board discussed and reviewed potential scheduling dates for Special Board Meetings, 
Community Workshops and other meetings and addressed each meeting date as a separate 
motion item as follows: 
1. Motion to approve a Special Board Meeting to review and approve Prop 1 DWR Grant 

application be held on November 7 at 6pm, Director Broggie; Second, Director 
McFadden.  Voice vote: six ayes (Broggie, Kimball, Long, McFadden, Meneghin, Pace); 
none opposed.  Motion carries six/zero. 

2. Motion to select the top three firms from the recommendations of the Ad Hoc Legal 
Committee and invite those candidates to participate in an interview before the Board of 
Directors at the next Regular Board Meeting, rescheduled for Monday, December 11 at 
5pm, Director Broggie; Second, Director Meneghin.  Voice vote: six ayes (Broggie, 
Kimball, Long, McFadden, Meneghin, Pace); none opposed.  Motion carries six/zero.  

3. Motion to schedule a Special Board Meeting to discuss and prepare for the Community 
(Budget) Workshops on Monday, December 4, at 6pm; and to schedule, promote and 
send letters of invitation and post public notices in local newspapers for a FPB GSA 
Community (Budget) Workshop  to educate the public and solicit public opinion on rate 
charges and the January-June 2018 Budget for the FPB GSA on Wednesday, December 6 
at 9am at the Veteran’s Memorial Building in Fillmore, Director McFadden; Second, 
Director Broggie.  Voice vote: six ayes (Broggie, Kimball, Long, McFadden, Meneghin, 
Pace); none opposed.  Motion carries six/zero. 

4. Motion to schedule a FPB GSA Basin Boundary Modification Workshop, and to promote 
and invite the general public and post public notices of the meeting date of Thursday, 
January 11, at 9am at the Veteran’s Memorial Building in Fillmore, Director Broggie; 
Second, Director McFadden.  Voice vote: six ayes (Broggie, Kimball, Long, McFadden, 
Meneghin, Pace); none opposed.  Motion carries six/zero. 

 
  



Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 

October 30, 2017 

Page 7 

 

 
 

 

ADJOURNMENT  8:36p.m. 
The Board will adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting on  
Monday, December 11, 2017 or call of the Chair. 

I certify that the above are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting of 
October 30, 2017. 

 
____________________________________________________ 

Attest:  Kelly Long, Chair, Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency (FPB GSA) 

 
____________________________________________________ 

Attest:  Kris Sofley, Interim Executive Director, FPB GSA 





FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 

Item No.7B 

DATE: 

TO: 

SUBJECT:  

January 11, 2018

Board of Directors 

Revised Resolution 2017-02 Adopting Revised Conflict of Interest   (Motion) 

SUMMARY 

After approving and submitting a Resolution adopting a Conflict of Interest (COI) code based on 

other GSA’s language, the language used was rejected by Ventura County’s Counsel.  Ventura 

County’s Deputy Clerk of the Board provided the County’s template Resolution and Conflict of 

Interest Code, which has been personalized for the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater 

Sustainability Agency and is attached for the Board’s review and consideration. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Adopt the revised Resolution 2017-02 and revised Conflict of Interest code. 

BACKGROUND 

The Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (“JPA Agreement”) requires that the Agency adopt a local 

Conflict of Interest (COI) code pursuant to the schedule and provisions described below.  

Section 8.5 of the JPA Agreement requires the Board of Directors to adopt a local conflict of interest 

code pursuant to the provisions of the Political Reform Act of 1974 (Government Code sections 81000, 

et seq.) at the first meeting following the appointment of the Stakeholder Directors. 

The Interim Executive Director compiled examples of COIs approved by or being considered by other 

GSAs for the Board to consider as templates in the development of a COI for this Agency.  These 

examples of COIs from other Groundwater Sustainability Agencies were used to draft a Resolution 

and Conflict of Interest Code which was then approved by Board and submitted by the Interim 

Executive Director to the County Board of Supervisors for its approval.  The submission was rejected 

by Ventura County’s Counsel twice. 

The County’s Deputy Clerk of the Board provided a template for the Resolution and COI which is offered 

by the County.  The template was personalized to reflect the designated positions and disclosure 

categories in Exhibit A and in the Appendix. This is the Revised Resolution 2017-02 and Conflict of 

Interest Code presented with this staff report. 

It should also be noted that the FPB GSA Board of Directors filed Form 700 Statement of Economic 

Interests which have been accepted by the County. 

FISCAL SUMMARY 

There was no fiscal impact from this item.  



Item No.7B 
DATE: January 11, 2018
Page 2 

 

 

Proposed Motion: 
“Motion to approve and adopt Revised Resolution 2017-02 and the Revised Conflict of Interest Code as 
presented,” 
 1st:  Director_____________________  2nd: Director ___________________________ 
Voice/Roll call vote:  

Director Broggie:        Director Kimball:   Director Long:    Director McFadden:  
Director Meneghin:         Director Pace: 



REVISED RESOLUTION 2017-02 OF THE  

FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 
ADOPTING A CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE  

The Political Reform Act, Government Code section 81000 et seq., requires local 
government agencies to adopt and promulgate Conflict of Interest Codes. The Fair Political 
Practices Commission has adopted a regulation (2 Cal. Code Regs., § 18730) which contains the 
terms of a standard Conflict of Interest Code, which may be amended by the Fair Political 
Practices Commission to conform to amendments in the Political Reform Act after public notice 
and hearings. 

The terms of California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 18730, and any amendment 
to it duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission, are hereby incorporated by 
reference as the Conflict of Interest Code for the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater 

Sustainability Agency, and along with the attached Exhibit A, which designates positions 
requiring disclosure and Exhibit B, which sets forth disclosure categories for each designated 
position, constitute the Conflict of Interest Code of the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater 

Sustainability Agency. Persons holding positions designated in Exhibit A shall file Form 700 
Statements of Economic Interests with the Clerk of the Ventura County Board of Supervisors’ 
Office which shall be the Filing Officer.    

IN PREPARING THE FORM 700, DESIGNATED FILERS NEED ONLY 

DISCLOSE THOSE FINANCIAL INTERESTS FALLING WITHIN THE DISCLOSURE 

CATEGORIES DESIGNATED FOR THAT FILER’S POSITION AS STATED IN 

EXHIBITS A AND B.   

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this _____ day of _______________________, 2018: 

By:  

Print Name:  Kelly Long  

Title: Chair of the FPB GSA Board 



 
EXHIBIT A – DESIGNATED POSITIONS  

 

 

 

 

# of 

POSITIONS 

POSITION TITLE DISCLOSURE 

CATEGORIES 

(From Exhibit B) 
 Board of Directors 1 

 Alternate Directors 1 

 Executive Director 1 

 Agency General Counsel 1 

 Treasurer 1 

   

Consultants1
   

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
1 The disclosure, if any, required of a consultant will be determined on a case-by-case basis by 
the head of the agency or designee. The determination of whether a consultant has disclosure 
requirements should be made in writing on a Fair Political Practices Commission Form 805. The 
determination should include a description of the consultant’s duties and based upon that 
description, a statement of the extent, if any, of the disclosure requirements. Each Form 805 is a 
public record and should be retained for public inspection either in the same manner and location 
as the Conflict of Interest Code, or with appropriate documentation at the location where the 
Conflict of Interest Code is maintained, cross-referencing to the Form 805. 



EXHIBIT B – DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES 

 

The terms italicized below have specific meaning under the Political Reform Act. In addition, the 
financial interests of a spouse, domestic partner and dependent children of the public official 
holding the designated position may require reporting. Consult the instructions and reference 
pamphlet of the Form 700 for explanation.  
 
Category 1 – BROADEST DISCLOSURE 
[SEE FORM 700 SCHEDULES A-1, A-2, B, C, D and E] 
 

(1) All sources of income, gifts, loans and travel payments; 
(2) All interests in real property; and 
(3) All investments and business positions in business entities. 

 
Category 2 – REAL PROPERTY 
[SEE FORM 700 SCHEDULE B] 
 
All interests in real property, including interests in real property held by business entities and 
trusts in which the public official holds a business position or has an investment or other financial 
interest. 
 
Category 3 – LAND DEVELOPMENT, CONSTRUCTION AND TRANSACTION 
[SEE FORM 700 SCHEDULES A-1, A-2, C, D and E] 
 

All investments, business positions and sources of income, gifts, loans and travel payments, from 
sources which engage in land development, construction, or real property acquisition or sale. 
 
Category 4 – PROCUREMENT 
[SEE FORM 700 SCHEDULES A-1, A-2, C, D and E] 
 

All investments, business positions and sources of income, gifts, loans and travel payments, from 
sources which provide services, supplies, materials, machinery or equipment which the 
designated position procures or assists in procuring on behalf of their agency or department. 
 
Category 5 – REGULATION AND PERMITTING 
[SEE FORM 700 SCHEDULES A-1, A-2, C, D and E] 
 
All investments, business positions and sources of income, gifts, loans and travel payments, from 
sources which are subject to the regulatory, permitting or licensing authority of, or have an 
application or license pending before, the designated position’s agency or department. 
 
Category 6 – FUNDING  
[SEE FORM 700 SCHEDULES A-1, A-2, C, D and E] 
 

All investments, business positions and sources of income, gifts, loans and travel payments, from 
sources which receive grants or other funding from or through the designated position’s agency 
or department. 



APPENDIX - DESIGNATING OFFICIALS WHO  

MANAGE PUBLIC INVESTMENTS 

 
Pursuant to Government Code section 87200 et seq., certain city and county officials, as 

well as all “other officials who manage public investments,” are required to disclose their 
economic interests in accordance with the Political Reform Act. This Appendix provides the 
relevant definitions for determining which public officials qualify as “other officials who manage 
public investments,” designates the agency’s positions which qualify as such, and states the 
Filing Officer for each designated position.   
 
APPLICABLE DEFINITIONS 

 

As set forth in 2 California Code of Regulations section 18701, the following definitions 
apply for the purposes of Government Code section 87200:  
 
(1) “Other public officials who manage public investments” means:  
 

(A) Members of boards and commissions, including pension and retirement boards or 
commissions, or of committees thereof, who exercise responsibility for the management of 
public investments;  

 
(B) High-level officers and employees of public agencies who exercise primary 

responsibility for the management of public investments, such as chief or principal investment 
officers or chief financial managers. This category shall not include officers and employees who 
work under the supervision of the chief or principal investment officers or the chief financial 
managers; and  
 

(C) Individuals who, pursuant to a contract with a state or local government agency, 
perform the same or substantially all the same functions that would otherwise be performed by 
the public officials described in subdivision (1)(B) above.  

 
(2) “Public investments” means the investment of public moneys in real estate, securities, or 
other economic interests for the production of revenue or other financial return.  
 
(3) “Public moneys” means all moneys belonging to, received by, or held by, the state, or any 
city, county, town, district, or public agency therein, or by an officer thereof acting in his or her 
official capacity, and includes the proceeds of all bonds and other evidences of indebtedness, 
trust funds held by public pension and retirement systems, deferred compensation funds held for 
investment by public agencies, and public moneys held by a financial institution under a trust 
indenture to which a public agency is a party.  
 
(4) “Management of public investments” means the following non-ministerial functions: 
directing the investment of public moneys; formulating or approving investment policies; 
approving or establishing guidelines for asset allocations; or approving investment transactions.     
  



DESIGNATED POSITIONS AND FILING OFFICERS 

 

Based on the foregoing, the following agency positions and/or consultants qualify as 
“other officials who manage public investments” and shall file Statements of Economic Interests 
(Form 700) pursuant to Government Code section 87200 et seq. with the below-designated Filing 
Officers: 
  

# of 

POSITIONS 

POSITION TITLE/CONSULTANT FILING OFFICER 

(Designate County Clerk of 
Board [COB] or Local Agency’s 
Clerk [AC]) 

   

   

   

   

 

 
 



FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 

Item No.  7.C 

DATE: 

TO: 

SUBJECT:  

January 11, 2018

Board of Directors 

General Liability Insurance - Information 

SUMMARY 

Brandi LoForti, an Insurance Advisor representing insureCAL Insurance Agency, has submitted a proposal 

for insurance that offers Professional Liability and Directors and Officers Insurance (with $1,000,000  

policy aggregate limit; $1,000,000 coverage for Public Officials Management; $50,000 coverage for 

Defense Only non-monetary coverage; $100,000 Defense only non-monetary coverage aggregate and 

$25,000 Crisis Management coverage) for a premium of $1,955.24 per year. They won't offer General 

liability until the FPB GSA has office space that it pays rent for. Ms. LoForti says that at this time in the 

agency’s development, she believes the agency requires Professional Liability and Directors and Officers, 

rather than General Liability.  The Professional will take care of potential law suits that may be brought 

by the decisions made and/or implemented by the board. The directors and officers liability insurance 

will protect the board from being sued personally for these decisions. The EPL is part of the 

package, which will cover employees when they are hired, and is not removable.

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Board would agree to sign and accept the General Liability Insurance Proposal from insureCAL insurance 

agency and pay the annual premium amount of $1,955.24. 

BACKGROUND 

In accordance with item 15.4 of the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (“JPA Agreement”), the 

Board of Directors shall obtain, and maintain in effect, appropriate liability insurance to cover the 

activities of the Agency’s Directors and staff in the ordinary course of their duties.  To that end, the 

interim executive director has requested quotes for General Liability and Directors and Officers 

Liability coverage from two different insurance providers. 

As directed by the Board at the August 28, 2017 meeting, Interim Executive Director requested quotes 

for General Liability and Directors and Officers Liability coverage from different insurance providers.   

The California Association of Non Profits (CalNonprofits), recommended by Deborah Jackson (Brokaw 

Nursery) of the Fillmore Pumpers Association, declined to quote after reviewing the FPB GSA’s lengthy 

application. 

JPIA, affiliated with Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA), required ACWA Affiliate 

Membership (due to the three non-public entities on the board the GSA would have to apply for Affiliate 

membership), for eligibility for the JPIA insurance and would require a three year commitment.  As 

ACWA is reaching out to GSAs with a special membership promotion, they are offering a 50 percent  



Item No.  7.C 
DATE: Janaury 11, 2018
Page 2 

discount for the first year’s membership ($375 less discount equals $187.50 for 2018); a 25 percent 

discount for the second year’s membership ($375 less discount equals $281.25); and the third year at 

full price ($375.).  This is based on a base of $750 as the GSA doesn’t have two years of previous revenue 

to base the membership fee on.  Because none of the GSA’s member director entities have General 

Liability Insurance with JPIA, they have declined the FPBGSA’s request for coverage. 

California Special District Association’s annual dues for Associate membership (as there are non-public 

organizations included in the FPB GSA Board, the agency would have to register as an Associate 

member) are $1231 per year and could increase in 2018.  CSDA’s insurance partner, SDRMA, does offer 

General Liability Insurance of, on average, $1400 per year, and requires a three year commitment.  

Joining the CSDA does not guarantee acceptance by the SDRMA for insurance coverage however. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The fiscal impact from this item would be $1,955.24 for one year’s insurance coverage.  

Attachment:  A  

Proposed Motion: 

“Motion to approve and sign the insureCAL insurance agency proposal for General Liability Insurance 
Coverage in the amount of $1,955.24 per year, on behalf of the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency,” 
1st:  Director_____________________  2nd: Director ___________________________ 

Voice/Roll call vote: 
Director Broggie:        Director Kimball:   Director Long:    Director McFadden:  
Director Meneghin:         Director Pace: 



                          11/28/2017 
insureCAL Insurance Agency
1065 Colorado Ave Ste 5
Turlock, CA 95380
Office: 209.250.0269 - Fax: 209.633.5799
CA# 0K05980 | TX# 1985110 | NV# 3136704
OR# 100281464 | WA# BUS916989 | AZ# 1148551

General Liability Insurance Proposal
Thank you for the opportunity to present this proposal. Please let us know if you have
any questions or if you would like to see other options available. 

Applicant Name: Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater sustaninability
Agency
Address: 250 Central Ave Fillmore CA 93015 
Policy Type: Professional Liability, Directors & Officers, EPL
Carrier: Indian Harbor Insurance Co. AXV
Presented By: Brandi LoForti 

Coverage's:
$1,000,000    - Policy Aggregate Limit
$1,000,000   - Public Officials Management
$50,000        - Defense Only Non Monetary Coverage
$100,000      - Defense Only Non Monetary Coverage Aggregate
$25,000        - Crisis Management

Premium = $1955.24/year

No coverage is bound until accepted & approved by the insurance carrier. Rates are subject to
change upon receipt of completed applications. Signatures on the applications and the Quotation
are only good for 30 days. The terms & conditions offered may differ from what has been
requested.

__________________________                                    ______________
Signature                                                                         Date

Copyright © 2017 insureCAL Insurance Agency, All rights reserved.
1065 Colorado Ave., Ste 5, Turlock, CA 95380 





























































FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY 

Item No.8A 

DATE: 

TO: 

SUBJECT:  

January 11, 2018

Board of Directors 

Confirming Proposed 2018 FPB GSA Regular Board of Directors Meeting Dates 
and rescheduling of FPB GSA Community Workshop #1 and FPB GSA Boundary 
Modification Workshop 

SUMMARY 

Interim Executive Director prepared a list of the proposed 2018 meeting dates for Board approval. 

Note that the February and May meeting dates have a conflict as the Fillmore City Council 

Chambers are NOT available on the regularly scheduled last Monday of the month and need to be 

rescheduled.  Also, due to the Thomas fire, the FPB GSA Community Workshop, which had been 

scheduled for Wednesday, December 6, needs to be rescheduled, which also impacts the meeting 

date for the FPB GSA Boundary Modification Workshop, which had been scheduled for Thursday, 

January 11, 2018.   

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Approve the proposed 2018 Regular Board Meeting dates, with the exception of February and May. 

Select new dates for the February and May 2018 dates (see Attachment A Calendars); reschedule 

both the FPB GSA Community Workshop and the FPB GSA Boundary Modification Workshop at the

Veteran’s Memorial Building for later in January and/or February.

BACKGROUND 

The Board of Directors had previously agreed that Regular Board of Directors Meetings for the 

Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency would occur on the last Monday of the 

month and would begin at 6p.m. utilizing the City of Fillmore’s City Council Chambers.  In checking 

with the City of Fillmore, there are two conflicts for use of the City Council Chambers on the 

last Monday of the month in February and May.  Other possible dates have been noted on 

monthly calendars for February and May (see attachment A).  Interim Executive Director also has 

dates of availability for the Veteran’s Memorial Building in Fillmore for rescheduling the FPB GSA 

Community Workshop #1 and FPB GSA Boundary Modification Workshop in January and/or 

February, 2018. 

FISCAL SUMMARY 

There was no fiscal impact from this item.  



Item No.8A 
DATE: January 11, 2018
Page 2 

 Proposed Motion: 
“Motion to approve the proposed 2018 meeting dates as indicated in Attachment A, and to schedule 
 the FPB GSA Regular Board Meeting for February on ___________and the FPB GSA Regular Board 
Meeting for May on _________, and to reschedule the FPB GSA Community Workshop #1 
for ___________________at the Veteran’s Memorial Building and reschedule the FPB GSA
Boundary Modification Workshop to _________________ also at the Veteran’s Memorial Building,” 
 1st:  Director_____________________  2nd: Director ___________________________ 

Voice/Roll call vote: 
Director Broggie:        Director Kimball:   Director Long:    Director McFadden:  
Director Meneghin:  Director Pace:








	2018-01-11 FPBGSA SPECIAL Board Meeting Agenda
	7A Minutes 12-04-2017
	7A Minutes 11-07-2017
	7A Minutes 10-30-2017
	7B  Revised Resolution and Conflict of Interest Code- staff____ report
	7B Attachement A 2017_Revised Resolution 2017-02 Adopting____ COIC
	7C General Liability Insurance Quote - staff report
	7C Attachment A General Liability Insurance PROPOSAL
	General Liability Insurance Proposal

	8A Confirm 2018 proposed FPB GSA Regular Board Meeting dates and__ Reschedule Workshops
	8A Attachment A 2018 FPB GSA Proposed Meeting Dates
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



